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990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax S

Form Under section 601{c), 527, or 4947(a}{1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except black lung 20 1 1
benefit trust or private foundation)

Department of the Treasury . --O en to Public..-

InT:maln::v;\uo Se:vk:e P> The organization may have to uss a copy of this retum to satisfy state raporting requirements. |~ gﬁéﬁ_ectlobn—

A For the 2011 calendar year, or tax year beginning OJUL 1, 2011 andending JUN 30, 2012

B Checkif € Name of organization

weictle | children's Orthopaedic Surgery

e | Foundation, Inc.

D Employer idantification number

([ J%5% | Doing Business As 04-2943146
fohi Number and street (or P.0. box If mail Is not delivered to street address) Roomvsulte | E Telephone number
femin- | 300 Longwood Avenue HU221 (617) 355-8699
fanen®l City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4 @ Gross recelpts § 39,288,209,
Dﬁgglm- Boston, MA (02115 _ _ _ H{a} Is this a group return
PN I Name and address of principal officerd ames R. Kasser, MD for affillates? [Jyes [XINo

same as C above

H(b) Ara all affifiates included? [ Jyes [__INo

| Tax-exempt status: 1XJ 501(c)(3) L 501{c) ( )< (insert no.) L] 4947(a)(1) or L__Js27 If “No," attach a list. (see instrnuctions)

J Website: p N/A

H(c) Group exemption number P

K_Form of organization: | X | Corporation |_ITrust | | Association [ [ Other >

J . Year of formation: 198 6] m State of legal domicile: MA

[Fart [ Summary -

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: The

Foundatlion provides

12  Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Viil, column (A), ina 12) .. ...

g orthopaedic surgery services, medical research, and (see Schedule 0)
§ 2 Checkthis box P> L_Tiftne organization discontinued its operations or disposed.of more than 25% of its net assets.
é 3 Number of voting members of the govermning body (PartVl,line1a) . ... 1. .. . R E C E !_\/E 'D 3 23
« | 4 Numberof independent voting members of the governing body (Part V1, line 1) _ r———mmmeeca s 41l 1
8| 5 Totalnumber of Individuals employed In calendar year 2011 (Part V, line 2a) _ N | 55 26
2| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) ........ ... coo oo, i?-’APR:i@ 7013 [le 0
§ 7 a Total unrelated business revenus from Part Vill, cowmn (C), linet2 . (0. .+ Ta 2,058,
b Net unrelated business taxable Income from Form 990-T, ine 34 ... e RN - 1 e L 7B 1,058,
o ~_ PriorYear” - —.>  Current Year
» | 8 Contributions and grants (Part Vill, line 1h) 255,000, 20,000,
?, ©  Program service revenus {Part Vill, ine 2g) R 36,423,952.] 38,548,626,
f;’ 10 Investment income (Part Vi, column (A), lines 3 4 and 7d) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 604,143, 719,583,
11 Other revenue (Part Vill, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 8¢, 10c,and 116) ... ... 0. 0.

37,283,085.] 39,288,2009.

13 Grants and simitar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3)

b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) »

Expenses

14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), lined) ... .
16 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10)
18a Professional fundraising fees {Part IX, column (A), line 1€}, ... ... ... .. ... ..

206,660, 5,168,880.

.......... 0‘ 00
........ 2515901ﬂ8‘ 26,801,512.

" 0. 0.
0 ® ;_'-;-'.-‘— L= - = :-'__‘__: : = I

18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline 12 .. ............. .. ... .

17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d,11f24e} . . . ... . ... .

ST IIS 6 55T 93
31,978 303, 38 522 31¢€.
5304 797, 765 897,

20 Total assets (Part X, line 16)

rﬁ',%‘a"éiﬁ'ﬁc“

Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 .

21 Total liabilities (Part X, iN@ 26) ... ... .cccormerercens rerveiens cee e e e o

Beginning of Current Year End of Year
52,278,098.] 53,247,037,
8,785,427, 9,168,748,
43,492,671.] 44,078,289,

L_értll [ Signature Block

Under penalties of perlury, | déclare) )that d this return, jo udlng accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knoviedge and bellef, itls
, 4 .

true, correct, and complete. Decla

e pfspasegon all Information of which preparer has any knowledgg,

> = [ o fot/ 90/ 5
Sign ature 0 ,jl"-f", o Dale 7 7
Here R. Kasser, MD, FPresident
Tname and titie
Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Uale Che ||
Pald £ .DRew CHENEY s . Drew Y [13 | senpe POO‘I 82972
Preparer |Fim'sname ) Baker, Newman, & Noyes, LLC \ Fim'sENp 01-0494526

Use Only [ Firm's address ), 280 Fore Street
Portland, ME 04101

Phonsno. 1-800-244-7444

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? {see instructions) R L. L Jves [ _INo
132001 01-23-12  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructlons. Form 990 (2011)

See Schedule O for Organization Mission Statement Continuation




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Form 930 (2011) Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 page2
—

Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthisPart Il ... ... ... . oo i oo i e e . x]

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

The Foundation provides orthopaedic surgery services to patients at
Boston Children's Hospital and other health care providers at
satellite locations. The mission strives to provide care for patients
with a wide range of developmental, congenital, (see Schedule 0)

Did ths organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on

the PHOF FOM 980 OF 890-EZ? ... ooeeoeeseoeoes e+ —eoestees oo eeesessesers oesesrs s e sremesresis (Cves (XIno
If *Yes,® describe these new services on Schedule O.

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?_ .. .. DYes Xne
If *Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to
others, the total expenses, and revenus, If any, for each program service reported.

4a

{Code. ) (Expenses § 35,814,044, Including grants of $ 5,168,880- } (Revenus s 37,651,351. )
The Foundation provides orthopaedic surgery gervices primarily to
patients at Boston Children's Hospital and other health care providers
at satellite locations. The Foundation may charge for patient care,
other medical serviceg, and related products, provided that any net
income is used exclusively for the charitable, sclentific, and
educational purposes for which the Foundation was created. The
Foundation also provides care for patients in need of orthopaedic
services regardless of theilr ability to pay, as well as providing and
subsidizing hospital and community based services that are limited in
the community.

(Code: ) (Expenses $ 1 ’ 199 ) 641, including grants of § ) (Revenus $ 897 ’ 275, )
The Foundation carries on and promotes basic and applied medical
research and education in the field of orthopaedics by teaching
students and other medlcal and scientlific personnel; by providing or
supplementing income to research personnel through fellowships,
research grants, and stipends; and by giving lectures and publishing
information concerning problems and research results in the field of
pedlatric orthopaedics in order to educate the general public and the
medical profession.

4c

{code ) {Expenses $ Including grants of § ) (Reverue s )

4ad

Other program services (Describe In Schedule O.)
(Expenses § Including grants of $ ) {(Revenue s )

4e _ Total program service expenses P> 37,013,685,

132002

Form 990 (2011)

02-09-12




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Form 990 {2011 Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146  page3
[PartIV-[Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a}(1) (other than a private foundation)?
If “Yes," complete Schedule A | | . ... .. e s e e e e e 1 (X
2  Is the organization required to complete Scheduls B, Schedufe of Contributorsy | | e 2 [ X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or Indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or In opposltion to candidates for
public office? If "Yes,” complate SChadulo C, PAIt! . . .. .. ... ..o o e 3 X
4 Section 501{c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? /f *Yes, " complete Schedule C, Partff . | 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501 (c)(e) organlzation that recelves membershlp duas, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If “Yes, " complete Schedule C, Partill . . " 5 X
68 Did the organization maintalin any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the nght to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f *Yes,* complete Schedule D, Part] { 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, Including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If *Yes, " complete Schedule O, Partll . .. .. .. . 7 X
8 Did the organization maintaln collactions of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? /f “Yes, ® complete
SCHEAUIE D, PATL I | .. . oo oo e oes eooees eeeeee —eeeeeeeeeess e e+ eeeeeeeeeosessees ot seeeseeeeee seseeseeesseesssaneenene 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount In Part X, line 21; serve as a custodlan for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide
credit counseling, debt management, credit repalr, or debt negotiation services? If *Yes, * complete Schedule D, PartIv . 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanent
endowments, or quasi-endowments? /f "Yes, * complete Schedule D, Part V )
11 I the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes,* then complete Schedule D Parts Vl Vll VIIi IX or X
as applicabte.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, bulldings, and equipment in Part X, ine 10? If "Yes, " complate Schedule D,
PEIEVI | oo eeeeeseveeesssieses sevssssssssssssms s s1es cesson arren + sessen smsr e es s es om0 Sressesrantt erenes ore 1o 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, Iine 12 that Is 5% or more of its total
assets reported In Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl . . .. 1| X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that ls 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 162 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIl | . .. ..o, 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, iine 15 that is 5% or more of Its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 If *Yes,” complete SCReAUIS D, PArtIX . ... ... @ s oo oo id] [ X
e DId the organlzation report an amount for other habllities in Part X, iine 257 /f *Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X = . 11e | X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part X . 111 | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,® complete
Schedule D, Parts Xty X, @G X e e oo eeeeesseesseetressers soessemeeeeeeeees 12a]| X
b Was the organization Included In consolidated, independent audited financlal statements for the tax year?
If *Yes," and if the organization enswered "No* to line 12a, then completing Scheduls D, Parts X, Xil, and Xili Is optional . i2p | X
13 Is the organization a schoo! described in section 170()(1}(A))? #f "Yes," complete Scheduls € . .. . 13 X
14a Dld the organization maintain an office, employess, or agents outside of the United States? . .. ... .. ... ... ... 14a X
b DIid the organization have aggregate revenuss or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundralsing, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate forelgn Investments valued at $100,000
or more? if *Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts 180G IV .. .. ... ..o e e oo o 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any organization
or entrty located outside the United States? /f “Yes," complete Schedule F, Partstand v . .~ . . 15 X
16 Did the organizatlon report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance to individuals
located outside the United States? If "Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts lll and 1V 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professxonal Iundralslng services on Part IX
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If *Yes,* complete Schedulo G, Part ! . . ... ... e 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $16,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIlt, lines
1c and 8a? If "Yes,* complete Schedule G, Partif 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross incomse from gamlng actMtles on Part ViII hne 9a? lf 'Yes
complete Schedule G, Parti .. . e 19 X
20a Dld the organization operate one or more hospnal facnlmes? If "Yes complele Schedule H ——— 20a X
b_If *Yes® to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financlal statements to thig retum? . 20b
£orm 990 (2011)

13201

03
01-23-12




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Form 990 (2011) Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146  paged
[Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to any government or organization in the
Unlted States on Part iX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts land Il i, 21 | X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to Individuals in the United States on Part IX,
column (A), line 22 /f “Yes," complete Schedule !, Parts 1and il | | ... oo oioeeerisines cevseeose cveesen aees 22 X
Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VlI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employsss? /f "Yes, " complste
SCHBAUIB Y | . oooos eoos oo eeeeeeessos eeeeeeees oo eeseesone +vesesesseseereesessseeeseeeeseemerese s eseresesseseessoererees s woeerese 2| X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027? /f "Yes, " answer linas 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. If "NO%, GO0 NG 25 .. . ... e seesseseseeesesenin  1ee weversseeesereeser e o 24a X
b DId the organization invest any proceeds of tax- exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? _ . . 24b
¢ Did the organization maintaln an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
BNY tAX-OXBMPLDONUST .. ... o ietriereeerrensssseesscssrnnes 2etecesrmsisateeeseaseserassssssasssstsemtmarens saesessimessraansssnsases 24c
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of* issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c}{4) organizations. Did the organization engage In an excess bensfit transaction with a
* disqualfied person dunng the year? If *Yes," complete Schedule L, Part! _ 25a X
b s the organization aware that it engaged In an excess benafit transaction with a disqualitied person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If *Yes, * complete
SCHEUUIB L, PAIEI | ___.._.......oooooeoeoerresmssmsssssssess sosssssssn sosssssesssssssssssssssseosson ssssesoeeneesesees wessesesssseses soveese sosemes 1o 25b X
26 Was aloan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, highly compensated employae, or disqualified
person outstanding as of the end of the organization's tax year? /f "Yas,* complets Scheduls L, Part Il 26 | X

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employes, substantial
contributor or employes thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a35% controlled entity or family member
of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, PartIll ||| ........eceieiee ceeevieses ceeeiesarsaneseees
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties {(see Schedule L, Part IV
Instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes, " complete Schedule L, ParttvV . ..
A family member of a curvent or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? /f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV
¢ An entity of which a cument or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer,
director, trustes, or diract or indirect owner? if “Yes," complete Schedule L, Partiv . .

-4

28a

28b

28¢c

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes, * complete ScheduleM . . ..
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified oonservat(on
contributions? If "Yes, " complete SChBAUIB M ||| . . ... ...oerrisieteiniissiiesssenssasssssasiaseen sreesssastiens
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations?

IF"Yes,” complete SCREAUIB N, PAITI | | ........oeoeeeeeieteeeeeseeeeieeseme e e eesesssesssssassaessssesasa stesssssnssssessosssostosnssassssas
32 Dld the organization sell, exchangse, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets?/f "Yes, * complete

SCREUUIB N, PATII || | .oooeeeeeies eveeieeseeeesreessen vvveesseesasssessssssessssasanesssssssassessseses et mms semsmsssose svsssasesassesssasinn oo
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organlzatlon under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37? /f “Yes,* complete Scheduile R, Part !
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity?

If *Yes,” complete Schedule R, Parts I, 1L, IV, and V, Ine T | | s e e isrrenns
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of sectlon 512(b)(13)? .

b Did the organization recelve any payment from or engage In any transaction with a controlled entity within the meanmg of

section 512(b)(13)? /f “Yes," complete Schedule A, Part V, IN@ 2 | || ................. oo ceees ceveease e eveeerees
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?

If *Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, in@ 2 | | . ... ... ..o et e e e eenereriene eeeeaeresarens
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activilies through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? /f "Yes, " complete Schedule B, Part\1 .. .
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part V], lines 11 and 197
Note. All Form 9390 filsrs are regulred to complete Schedule O . .. ... ... .

g8

29

31

32

ol S R bese’

37

COT o B -

38

X

132004
01-23-12
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Form 990 (2011 Foundation, Inc.
- Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Comphance

Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

04-2343146 _ Page5

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part V .

1a

2a

3a

4a

5a

8a

_ Yes | No

Enter the number reported In Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0-if notapplicable ... 1a

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included In line fa. Enter -0- if not applicable . ... . . 1b

Did the organization comply with backup withholding nules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
{gambling) winnings tO Prize WINMBIS? _..... ........ccc.ceeeiuieiniecereiees eeeteieee e e e esee s seeeeeeeees e s sens soevsmen
Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,

fited for the calendar ysar ending with or within the year covered by thisretum . 2a

if at least one Is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment taxretums?

Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-fils (see Instructions)
Did the organization have unrelated businass gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?
if "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? /f “No, " provide an explanation in ScheduleC . . . .. .
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over.

financial account in a foreign country (such as & bank account, securities account, or other financlal account)?
if "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: ™
Ses instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 80-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts.

Was the organization a party to a prohlbited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear? ... ... .
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohlbited tax shelter transaction?,
if “Yes," to line Sa or 5b, did the organization file FOMM 8888-T? . ... ..o oo oo oo
Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and aid the organization solicit

any contributions that were not tax dedUctiDIB? | . . . .. .. e e e e e e e, 6a X
b If *Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were NOLEaX dBdUGCHIDIBY . ... . .o s et et st eee et reee ettt e et ee e oo s e et e e e oo oo 6b
7 Organlzations that may recelve deductible contributions under section 170{c). A T s
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $76 made parily as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payer?{ 7a X
b If *Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? .. . ... 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwlse dispose of tangible parsonal property for which it was required
10 118 FOMMBR2B2? ... (.coiiioiiies ot ceretcneee e emaenens eraees cessessesbosecssees oeseetssssasesse seaeeseeems s ceessessnes oe soeseesrsmseees e 7¢ X
d If "Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year ek N e
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premlums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . 7t X
g If the organization recsived a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as requnred? | 79
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization fite a Form 1098-C7? | 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintalning donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations, DI the supporting
organlzation, or a donor advised fund malnlained by a sponsoring organtzation, have excess business holdings at any time during the year?
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 48687 .
b Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advlsor, or related person?
10 Section 501(c){7) organizations. Enter: .
a Initiation fees and capital contributions Included on Part VIil, line 12 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part ViII, ine 12, for public use of club facllitles 10b
11 Section 501{c}{12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders ... ... ... e reeemesonee oo 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received fromthem.) ... ... e e 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charltable trusts. is the mganlzatlon fillng Form 890 In lieu of Form 10417
b If *Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ............. ... 12b
13  Section 501{c)(29) qualitied nonprofit health insurance issuers. E
a Is the organlzation licensed to Issus qualified health plans inmore thanonestate? . ... ... .~ 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Scheduls O. |-
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization Is licensed to Issue qualified health plans | . .. ... .o e 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reserves oNhand | ........ccoooovviiericveiis + e oo oo e oo eeaees e, 13¢ SRkl ISl i
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for Indoor tanning services during the taxyear? . . ... . 14a X
b _If "Yes,” has it fited a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,* provide an explanation in Schedule O 14h
Form 990 (2011)
132005

01-23-12




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Form 990 (2011) Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146  Page6

Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each *Yes® response to lines 2 through 7b befow, and fora “No® rasponse

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. Ses instructions.

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthisPart VI ... ... . . .. .. . ...

Section A. Governing Bady and Management

fa

Enter the number of voting members of the goveming body atthe end of thetexyear .. . ... . | 1a

Yos I No_

If there are materlal differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governlng
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule 0.

b Enter the number of voting members included In line 1a, above, who are Independent .. .. . 1b
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relatlonship or a business relatlonship with any other
officer, director, trustes, OF KoY @MPIOYBOT . ... .. ... ..o i coereees e eeee —eeeeeen eeeeeeeeeeee eere —eee emeree aeen
3 DWd ths organization delegate contro) over management dutles customarily performed by or under the direct superwslon
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? __ 3 X
4 Did ths organization make any signiflcant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was ﬁled? _____________ 4 X
5 Did the organization bacome aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? _ .. . ... .. 5 X
6 Didthe organization have members or STOCKNOIEIST || | . ... ... ... ccciietieies e eeeeeeee e e revesssseseresesenn sererees 6 | X
7a DId the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the GOVeIniNg DOAY? | .. .. .. . . e e ot oo o aoreee v 7a | X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the QOVEINING DOGY? . . s e e oo oo oo e oo X
8 Did the organtzation contemporaneously document the mestings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following; S B
8 The GOVEMING BOGY? | | .. L. o oo oo eeeeeeeeven eeeeeeee eeeresesseseaoens seeee eeeeeee + e eeeeeeeoen oo e X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the goveming body? ... .. .. ... ..o e e X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key empioyee listed in Part Vil, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s malling address? /f "Yes, " provide the names and addresses In Schedule O 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policles not required by the intemal Revenue Code )
Yeos | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affillates? || . ... e e oo e e e e 10a X
b If "Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activitles of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure thelr operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? ... ...
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its govermning body before filing the form?
b Describe In Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have & wiitten conflict of Interest policy? If "NO," go 0 line 13 e e
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to contticts?
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f “Yes,*® describe
In Schedule O how this was done
13 Did the organization have a written whlstleblower pollcy?
14  Did the organization have a wiitten document retention and destructlon pohcy‘? __________________________________________________________
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management offictal ... ... ... .. . .. .. 15a | X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization | ...t ceeeerees oo eeeeeeeeeeeee e esseeee
If *Yes" to line 15a or 16b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity QUAING the YRR | . . . .. s et e e oo+ e e e e oo
b if “Yes," did the organization {cllow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation

In joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization's
exempt status with respect tosuch amangements? .. ... ..o oo i

16b

Section C. Disclosure

17  Ust the states with which a copy of this Form 990 Is required to be filed > MA
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 980, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these avallabls. Check all that apply.
Own website [ Another's website ] Upon request
19  Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how), the organization mads Its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements avaltable to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, physical address, and telsphone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization: p»
Dean Bauer - (617) 355-8699
300 Longwood Avenue, Boston, MA 02115
PEitan Form 890 (2011)
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Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and independent Contractors
Check If Schedule O contalns a responss to any question inthis Parttvit .~

|

Section A. Ofilcers, Directors, Trustess, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organtzation's tax year.

® List all of the organlzation's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) If no compensation was pald.
® List ali of the organtzation’s current key employess, if any. See instructions for definition of *key employee.”
® List the organlzation's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who recerved reportable
compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $160,000 from the organization and any related organizations.
® List all of the organization's former officers, key employess, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustes of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organlzation and any related organizations.
List persons In the following order: Individual trustees or directors; institutional trustess; officers; key employess; highest compensated employees;

and former such persons.

l:l Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compsnsated any current officer, director, or trustee.

{A) (B) (©) (D) (€) F)
Name and Title AVerage | o not cheosiON an one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per { box, uniess person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week Officer and & duectorfinusto) from from related other
(describe § the organizations compsensation
hoursfor |= 3 organization {W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | 2 g g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | 3 ElE, and related
inSchedule | S| . El188 » organizations
o |EjE|E|s5|5E|5
(L) James R, Kasser, MD
President 60.00 X X 995,370. 0. 83,299.
(2) John B, Emans, MD
Treasurer 60.00(X X 933,249. 0. 49, 245.
(3) Peter M, Waters, MD
Clerk 60.001X X 1,136,749, 0.] 90,140.
(4) Michael Millis, MD
Director 60.00|X 969,371. 0.] 74,356,
(5} M, Timothy Hresko, MD
Director 60.00X 774,654. 0. 56,133,
(6) Brian Snyder, MD
Director 60.00]X 452,054, 0.] 64,482,
(7) Lawrence Karlin, MD
Director 60.00)X 753,404. 0. 98,196,
(8) S8eymour Zimbler, MD
Director 60.001(X 569,223. 0. 77,257.
(9) Young-Jo Kim, MD
Director 60.00]X 838,573. 0. 50,876,
(10) Mininder Kocher, MD
Director 60.001}X 1,328,591, 0. 77,841,
(11) Daniel Hedequist, MD
Director 60,00X 884,095. 0. 76,988.
(12) Martha Murray, MD
Director 60.00|X 752,795. 0. 50,215.
(13) ponald Bae, MD
Director 60.00 X 880,373. 0. 94,109.
(14) Susan Mahan, MD
Director 60.00(X 395,373, 0. 61,322,
{(15) Gregory Melkonian, MD
pirector 60.00|X 449,798, 0.] 69,301,
(16) samantha Spencer, MD
Director 60.00(X " 753,273, 0. 77,257.
(17) Travis Matheney, MD
Director 60.00|X 536,073. 0. 66,030,

132007 01-23-12
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Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Form 990 (2011) Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 Page8
Part Vil| section A. _Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees {continued)
{A) (B) (€) (D) (E) {F)
Name and title Average (do ot cf,gﬁ'g:‘m one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, uniess person Is both an compensation compensation amount of
wesek officer and a dveotorinustee) from from related other
(describe § the organizations compensation
hoursfor {3 3 organlzation (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related s |8 a (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations g 'ié H :,_;; and related
In ch)edule g E g g g _§. E organizations
R F =g
{(18) Dennis Kramer, MD
Director 60.00(X 733,403. 0. 71,650.
{138) Yi-Meng Yen, MD
Director 60.001X 735,748. 0. 68,105,
{(20) Michael Glotzbecker, MD
Director 60.001X 742,109, 0.] 60,285,
(21) Benjamin Shore, MD
pirector 60.00|X 443,006. 0.] 60,935,
(22) Benton E, Heyworth, MD
Director 60.00(X 131,383. 0. 66,503.
(23) Lyle J, Micheli, MD
Director 2.00(X 0. 0. 0.
(24) Physicians’ Org, at CH, Inc,
Independent Board Membser 2.00 X 0. 0. 0.
{25) Thomas Hart
Rey Executive 60.00 X 292,391, 0., 80,085,
(26) Matthew Warman,6 MD
pPhysician 60.00 X 376,320, 0. 0.
b Sub-total e e e e » [16,867,378. 0.] 1624610,
¢ Total from continuation sheets to PartVil, Section A » 0. 0. 0.
d Total(addlines tband 16} .. ... oot i cereeee P 16,867,378, 0.] 1624610.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limlted to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization p»
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustes, key smployee, or highest compensated employee on L
line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for Such INGMIGUAl | | ... i e e e e e e 3
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, Is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization ey
and related organizations greater than $150,0007 /f "Yes, " complete Schedule J for such individual . .~ 4
6 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services -oii
rendered to the organization? Jf "Yes, " compiete Schedule J forsuchperson . . . ... .. ... .. 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that recelved more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compsnsation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (B) )
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
Hart Associlates
3 Allied Drive, Suite 312, Dedham, MA 02026Billing & Coding 1,161,589,

2 Total number of Independent contractors {including but not limited to those listed above) who recelved more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization p»

Form 990 (2011)
132008 01-23-12




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Form 990 (2011) Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 Page9
Statement of Revenue
(A) (8) (C) R (D)
Total revenus Related or Unrelated excluded feom
exempt functlion business tax under
= _ - revenue revenue sg%llogrs 55113.
gg 1 a Federated campalgns . e o Ef T
328 b Membershipdues _ _ . . .. ... b
49| o Funduisingevents .. ... 1c
&8 d Related organizations . .. 1d
gE e Govemment grants {contributions) 1e
.g?g f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
,gg simitar amounts notincluded above |1t 20,000.)
g-g g N h contridutk dinines ta-1t-$ =
& h_Total. Add lines 1a-1f N
Business Code} === : Bl B R
g | 2a Patient service revenu | 621300 | 27902163. 27902163, i
5, b Other service revenue 621300 [9,749,188.]9,749,188.
gl ¢ Research, service & ot [ 541700 526,913.] 526,913,
§é d¢ Administrative, teachi | 611710 | 370,362.] 370,362,
o e
& f Allother program service revenue = . ..
_ | g Total.Addlines2a2f . . ... ... ... . .. p|38548626.|:= ] ke
3  Investment Incoms (including dividends, interest, and
other simifar &mouNts)....._._.. .........ooveees v oo . . » | 719,583, 2,058, 717,525,
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P
6 Royalties .......c.cco cvvreennes s iiii ee . oeceesee .
(i) Real {I) Personal
6 a Grossrents . ...
b Less: rental expenses ...
¢ Rentalincome or (loss) . .
d Net rentalincome or (1088) . ... ... AR
7 a Gross amount from sales of | () Securitles i) Other

Other Revenue

assets other than inventory

b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses

¢ Gain or (loss)

8 a Gross Income from fundralsing events {not
Including $ of
contributions reported on fine 1¢). See
Part IV, line 18 a

b Less: direct expenses b

¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events
. © a Gross Income from gaming actlvities. Ses
Part IV, line 19 _ e e eeeee ..., @

b Less: directexpenses . ... ... b
¢ Net income or (oss) from gaming activities
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less retums
andallowances . .. .. ... .. ... . a

b Less:costofgoodssold . ... ... b
¢ _Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory

d Netgalnor(Ioss) .......ccecocv et veee ee cee e cene .

>

Miscellaneocus Revenue

Business Code] === 1

11a

b

c

d All other revenue

o Total. Add lines 11a-11d
12 Total revenue. Ses instructions.

\A

39288208,

~36548626.] 2,0

717,525,

01-23-12

Form 980 (2011)




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Foundation, Inc.

04-2943146  page10

Sectlon 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not required to
complete columns (B}, (C), and (D).

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part IX ||
Do not Include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total expenses Progragl garvlce Managem)ent and Fun ra)lsing
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part Vil expenses general expenses expenses
1  Grants and other assistance to governments and
organizations In the United States. See Part IV, fine 21 5,168,880,] 5,168,880
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the United States. Sse Part IV, line 22 .
3 Grants and other ass!stance to govemments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paidtoorformembers | ...
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees . 18,251,522.] 18,251,522,
8 Compensation not Included above, to disqualified
persans (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described In section 4958(c)(3)(B) . .
7 Othersalaries and wages ..................... 8,124,988.] 6,906,240, 1,218,748,
8 Penslon plan accruals and contributions gneiude
section 401(k) end 403(b) emplayer contr )
9 Other employee benefits . ... ... ...
10 Payrolitaxes . . 425,002, 398,089. 26,913,
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
a Management | . . ...
b legal . . o 16,027. 16,027,
¢ Accounting | ... ... 43,459. 43,459,
d Lobbying .. ...t
o Professional fundralsing services. Sea Part IV, line 17 == ST mentan
f Investment managementfees . 66,464, 66,464,
9 Other . ... 1,510,776.] 1,408,590, 101,186,
12 Advertisingandpromotion . ... ... ..
13 Officeexpenses .. ... .. ... 682 ’ 112, 646 . 278. 35, 834,
14 Information technology
15 Royaltles ... ... ... ...
16 OCUDANGY ..., .. coocoooeeeeere e e e e e 702,852, 702,852,
LA U 1,201. 1,201,
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officlals
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 344,278. 344,278.
20 Interest et e eeren eveeeaean e e e
21 Paymentstoaffillates . . ... ... ..
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 16,712, 16,712,
23 Insurance e reeeees seeeesereee + seemman oot 848,632 848,632,
24  Other expenses. Itemlze expenses not covered S R
above. (List miscellansous expenses in line 24e. If line
248 amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column {A)
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a Bad debt expense 915,458, 915,458,
b Research and education 708,780, 708,790.
¢ Outside medical service 410,041, 410,041,
d PO dues 285,122, 285,122,
e All other expenses
25  Total functional expanses. Add llnes 1through24e | 38,522,316.] 37,013,685.] 1,508,631. 0.
26 Joint costs. Complste this line only i the organization

reported In cofumn (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundralsing solicitation.
Check hero Jp» £ 1 following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

132010 01-23-12

Form 990 (2011)
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Foundation, Inc.

04-23843146 Ppage 11

Part X-| Balance Sheet

Form 990 (2011)

Assets

employess, and highest compensated employees. Complete Part i
of SChedUIB L | ... . s et eeoeeeeene eeoeeseeaseees
Receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958(f)(1)), persons described In section 4958(c)(3){B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary
employees' beneficlary organizations (see instructions)
7 Notes and loans receivable, net
8 Inventories forsale OrUSB . . ... .......ccceiimiomririeneeoeciesnensenass ooanee o -
9 Prepald oxpensss and deferred charges
10a Land, bulldings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part Vi of Scheduls D

2 047,33

w

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-nONinterest-beanng ... coerereorossn o 7,108.] 1 21,007.
2 Savings and temporary cashinvestments . . ... 8,720,291.] 2 9,494,132,
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net . ... .. e e, 3
4 AccOUNts IECOIVADIO, MOt . . .\ o ooooooeoeoeeerereeeeeeeee oo ereneneenees o 3,534,387, 4 3,836,674,
6 Recelvables from current and former officers, directors, trustaes, key =0 el |

1,992,666.

383,500,

197,000,

b Less: accumulated depreclation 10b

67,278,

116,733,

11 Investments - publicly traded securitles
12 Investments - other securities. Ses Part IV, line 11
13 Investments - program-related. See Part 1V, line 11
14  Intangible assets
16 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11

16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal iine 34)

17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses
18 Grantspayable .. ... ... . ettt e
19 Delemed rVBNUB | . ... .. . coeiiieiiicics e eeeeeen eeeeeereameee o eeererens
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities

,,,,,,,,, 10a 761,519. St il IR BaRPERCL
515,478, 252,188.] 10¢c 246,041,
....................................................... 17,226,078, 1+ 18,250,002,
........................................ 17,389,155.[ 12| 17,198,453,
..................................... 13
.................................................................................. 14
.............................................................. 2,650,780.] 15 1,894,329,
52,278,098.] 1e 53,247,037,
571,433.f 17 388,081,

132011 01-23-12

¢ |21 Escrow or custodial account llabllity. Complete Part IV of Schedula D
g 22 Payables to cumrent and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees,
__'§ highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons. Complete Part Il
- Of SChedUIBL .\ s e e e e
23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties ... .
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . ... ... ...
25 Other liabilties (including federal income tax, payables to related third
partles, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
SCNBAUIB D . .......ooe oo eceeeeems e eesereneens oo eeresseresee s ereeeereeeee 8,213,994.| 25 8,780,667,
26__ Total liabllities. Add lines 17 through 25 . . ... 8,785,427.] 28 9,168,748,
Organlzatlons that follow SFAS 117, check here b L.K_l and comp!ete 3
4 lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. A =T
£ (27 Unresticted netassets ... .. ..o e 42,698,424. 27| 43,399,366,
§ |28 Temporarily restricted net assets 794,247, 28 678,923,
¥ 29 Permanently restricted net assets
e Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here P [ andg
8 complete lines 30 through 34. DI
£ 130 Capital stock or trust principal, orcurrentfunds ... .. . 30
ﬁ 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, bullding, or equipment fund . ... . ... 31
% |32 Retalned eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds | . 32
Z [33 Totainetassetsorfundbalances .. ... .. ... ... 43,492,671.] 33| 44,078,289,
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances 52,278,098.13s| 53,247,037,
Form 990 (2011)




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Form 9980 (2011) Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 page12
ItEart-Xl | Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XI . ... .. Eﬂ

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIll, column (A), ine12) ... ... .. ... ... |1 39,288,209,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A, In625) . ... ... ... 38,522,316,
3 Revenus less expenses. Subtract e 2fom NS 1 . .. .\ioiiioiomiioes oo eeeeeee eeeees e 3 765,893,
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A) .. ... 4 43,492,671,
5 Other changes In net assets or fund balances {explain In Schedule O) ... ... 5 -180, 275,
8  Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Comblne lines 3, 4, and 5 (must equal Part X, line 33, coumn (B)) | 6 44,078,289,

Financial Statements and Reporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthis Part XI ... ... . .. .. . il rriceirireeenies e teiee ceeerereereieas [Zl

Yos | No

2a

da

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 830: [:] Cash [X] Accrual D Other

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in Schedule O.
Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?
Woere the organization’s financlal statements audited by an independent accountant?
If *Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibllity for oversight of the audtt,
review, or compliiation of its financlal statements and selection of an independent accountant?
If the organization changed elther its oversight process or selaction process during the tax year, explain in Schedule O.
If "Yes*® to line 2a or 2b, check a box below to indicate whether the financlal statements for the year were issued on a
separate basls, consclidated basis, or both:

Separate basis [:I Consolidated basis (X1 Both consolidated and separate basis
As a resuit of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Act and OMB Clrcular A-133?
If "Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit

or audlts, explain why in Schedule O and describs any steps taken to undergosuchaudits. . .. . .. ...

................................................................................................ SR X
3b
Form 990 (2011)




SCHEDULE A

{Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Depariment of the Treasury
internal Revenue Service

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Compilete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section

P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 890-EZ. P> See separate instructions.

4947(a) 1) nonexempt charitable trust.

OMB No 1545-0047

2011

Name of the arganization

Children's Orthopaedic Surgery
Foundation, Inc.

Employer ldennﬂcatlon number

04-2943146

|Partl:| Reason for Puplic Charity Status (Al organtzations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because It is: (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)

A church, convention of churches, or assoclation of churches described in section 170{b)}{1)(A){l).

1

2 D A school described In section 170{b){ 1)(A){il). (Attach Scheduls E.)

3 D A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b){ 1}(ANiil).

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described In section 170{b){1){AXIli). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

6

?0 00 O

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b){1}(AXiv). (Complete Part I1.)
A federdl, state, or local govemment or governmenta! unit described in section 170{bX1){A){v).
An organization that normally recelves a substantial part of ts support from a govemmental unit or from the general public described In
sectlon 170{b){1){A){vi). (Comp!lete Part Il.)
A community trust described in section 170{b)(1){A}vl}. (Complete Part Il.)
An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of Its support from contributions, membership fess, and gross recelpts from

activilles related to Its exempt functions - subjsct to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of fts support from gross investment
Income and unrelated business taxabie income (less section 511 tax} from businessss acquired by the organization after June 30, 1976.
See section 609{a)(2). (Complste Part lll.)

10
11

10

An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 609{a)(4).
An organization organized and operated exclusively for the bensfit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the pumposes of one or

more publicly supported organizations described In section 509(a)(1) or sectlon 509(a)(2). See section 609{a}{3). Check the box that
describes the type of supportin .

Typel

b

Type ll

organization and complete lines 11e through 11h,

Type lll - Functionally integrated
e D By checking this box, | certify that the organization Is not controlled directly or Indirectly by one or more disqualified persons other than
foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2).

a1 Type 1 - Other

f if the organization recelved a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type Il, or Type il

supporting organization, checkthisbox ... (I
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

(i) Aperson who directly or indirectly controls, elther alons or together with persons described in (i) and (jil) below, Yes | No

the goveming body of the supported organization?

(1) A family member of a person described in {)) above?

h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(1) Name of supported (EIN (M} Type of Iv}1s the organization] (v) Did you notify the {vi) Is the vil) Amount of
o organizalion n col. (t)Histed In your] organization in col. |¢gantzation in col. {vil) Amoun
organization (described on lines 1-9 : y 8 - ({10 organized in the support
above or IRC section governing document?| (1) of your support? USs.?
(see instructions)) Yes No Yes No Yes No
Total P P -

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notlce, see the Instructlons for

Form 990 or 990-EZ,

132021
Q1-24-12

Schedule A (Form 9980 or 990-EZ) 2011




Scheduls A {Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2011 Page 2
- Support Schedule for Organizations Described In Sactions 170(b){){A){iv) and 170B)T)A){v1)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lil. If the organization
falls to qualify under the tests listed below, piease complste Part Ill.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning In)p> (a) 2007 (b) 2008 (c) 2009 {d} 2010 {e) 2011 {f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.”)

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and efther pald to
or expended on Its behalf

3 The valus of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 ..

§ The portion of total contrbutions
by each porson {other than a
govemmaental unit or publicly
supported organization) Included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,
column (f)

6 _Public support, Subtiact tine 6 from fine 4. |
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) {a) 2007 {b) 2008 (c) 2009 {d) 2010 {e) 2011 (f) Total
7 Amounts fromlined . ...
8 Gross Income from interest,

dividends, payments received on
securitles loans, rents, royaltles
and Income from similar sources
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly canfed on
10 Other income. Do not Include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (ExplainInPart IV) ... ...
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 |-73%.0 L 5: -=7) o =2k : T
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see Instructions) 12—[
13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second thlrd fourth or fmh tax year asa secllon 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here .. R - B
Section C. Computation of Pu Bllc Support Percentage

14 Public support percentage for 2011 {ine 6, column (f) divided by ine 1t,column{f)) ... ... ... ... ... .. |14 %
16 Public support percentage from 2010 Schedule A, Part Il line 14 = . ... o 15 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2011, If the organization did not check the box on lins 13, and line 14 Is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizallon ... ... ... ... .o,
b 33 1/3% support test - 2010. if the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 164, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization _ .. .. U
17a 10% -facts-and-clrcumstances test - 2011. If the organization did not check a box on Ilne 13 16a, or 16b and Ilne 14 Is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances® test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how the organization
mesets the *facts-and-circumstances® test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .. . .. ... . .. .. .. >
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2010. if the organization did not check a box on ine 13, 182, 16b, or 174, and line 1515 10% or
more, and if the organtzation meets the “facts-and-circumstances® test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how the

organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances* test. The organization qualifiss as a publicly supported organfzation ... .. ... P D
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see Inslructlons . D

Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2011
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-£2) 2011 Foundation, Inc.
[Part T Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section a)(2)

Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

04-2943146

ae3

(Complste onty if you checked the box on line 9 of Part | or if the organization falled to qualify under Part L. {f the organization fails to

vali

Section A. Public Support

under the tests listed bslow,

lease complsete Part I1.}

Calendar year (or fiscal yaar beginning in)

1

8

Glfts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
Include any *unusual grants.”)

Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facllities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

Gross recelpts from actlvities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
Iness under section513
Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either pald to
or expended on its behalf
The value of services or facllities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
Total. Add lines 1 through 5

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and

3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounis inctuded on lines 2 and 3 recolved

8

from other than disqualified persons that
oxcead the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on fine 13 for the year

¢ Add lines 7aand 7b

Public support (st §)

(a) 2007

{b) 2008

(c) 2009

{d) 2010

(e} 2011

(f) Total

100,000.

819,251,

770,000,

255,000,

20,000.

1964251.

27207076.

33748688,

36438858,

36423952,

38548652,

172367226

27307076,

34567939,

37208858,

36678952,

38568652,

174331477

0.

0,

0'

=[174331477

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year {or fiscal year beglnning in) p

o

Amounts from line 6

10a Gross Income from interest,

dividends, payments recelved on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable Income

11

12

13
14

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

Net income from unrelated busnness
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly cardedon
Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part IV.)
Total support(add tines 8, 100, 14, and 12)

(8) 2007

{b) 2008

{c) 2009

(d) 2010

{e) 2011

{f) Total

27307076.

34567839,

37208858.

36678952,

38568652,

174331477

618,809,

525,610.

566,458,

544,695,

719,583,

2975155.

618,809,

525,610,

566,458,

544,655,

719,583,

2975155,

27925885,

35093549,

37775316,

37223647,

39288235.

177306632

First tive years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

check this box and stop here ......

»L ]

Section C. Computation of Pubhc Support Percentage TE——

15 Public support percentage for 2011 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column () ... ... ... ... ..

16 _Public support percentage from 2010 Schedule A, Part lif, line 15 ..
Section D. Computation of Investment income Percentage

98.32 «

98.26 %

17 Investment incoms percentage for 2011 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column{f)} __ . . . .

18 Investment income percentage from 2010 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17

1.68 o

1.70 o

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2011. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 Is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organlzation . . . . .

»x]

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2010. If the organization did not check a box on Iine 14 or hne 194, and line 16 Is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifles as a publicly supported organization
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on fine 14, 19a, or 19b, chack this box and see instructions .. . . ..

»[]
»[_J
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements M
{Form 990) P Complete If the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, 20 1 1
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 111, 123, or 12b. Open to Publlc™
am&:&:‘;m: &4 P> Attach to Form 990, P> See separate Instructions. T r=Inspection = -;
Name of the organization Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Employer identification number
Foundation, Inc. 04~2943146

[Fartl] Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete f the
organization answered “Yes® to Form 990, Part IV, {ine 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number atend of year . . ..........cccooereerrrrennennnen
Aggregate contributions to {during year)
Aggregate grants from {during year)
Aggregate value atend of year ... ... .. .. ... ...
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization's propsrty, subject to the organization’s exclusive tegal control? . ... ... ... D Yes [:] No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impennissible private benefit? . .. ...... ... £ Yes L] No
Part1]:=| Conservation Easements. Complete If the organlzatlon answered ~es® to Form 990 Part |v Ilne 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

oL WN =

Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of an historically impertant land area
Protection of natural habitat [ preservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete fines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualifled conservation contribution In the form of a conservation easement on the last
day of the tax year.
=:’z| Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation 8aS8MENtS | .. ... .c.ccciriies cer cerceeccrieeniens et seerinesess or canes eaees cersenes 2a
b Total acreags restricted by conservation easements | . . .. R -}
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic struclure Included In (a) ]
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a hlstoric structure
Iisted in the National RegISter | | .. .. ... ... e ceeies « e cee ceeeieeae oae e eeaerseenas oen e 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax

year p»
4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located p»>
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the perfodic monitoring, inspection, handiing of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation @asements  ROIAS? D Yes D No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monftoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easemsnts during the year p
7 Amount of expenses Incurred In monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year - $
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)()
BN SECHON T70MYUANBNNT ... .« oo oo eseeseesesseen  + +osssesees vt e oo eessse Clves [lne
8 In Part XIV, describe how the organization reports consservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
Include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financlal statements that describes the organization’s accounting for
conservation easements. _ _—
] Part.lll} Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Comptete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, iine 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance shest works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part XIV,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance shest works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts
relating to these items:

(1) Revenues Included in Form 980, Part VIii, line 1
{ii) Assetsincluded In Form980,PartX ... . R

2 |fthe organization recelved or held works of art, hlstodcal treasures or other slmllar assets for ﬂnanclal gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenues Included In Form 980, Part VIILIING 1 . | .. oo o i oo wevemserseieens > 3

b AssetsIncluded in Form 990, PartX . ... .. cet ereree et rennin eesreenaeen e+ sessrinerien ses see e srrrie seeee PP B
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 860. Schedule D {Form 990) 2011
132051

01-23-12




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery
Schedule D {Form 990) 2011 Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 page?
{Part1ll:] Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accesslon, and other records, check any of the following that are a signtficant use of Its collectlon items
(check all that apply):
a [ public exhibition
b [ Scholarly research e
¢ [ Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a dsscription of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIV.
6 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets

d ] Loan or exchange programs
] Other

to be sold to ralse funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organlzation’s collection? .. ..... e e L_:] Yes [:] No
- Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complets If the organization answered "Yes" 1o Form 990 Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, fine 21.
1a s the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other Intermediary for contnbulions or other assets not included
ONFOMM O80, PAMtXT it ceis eaescseesessssesssesass sememeasmesesesesmsasessanessseasa seeeren seee aeameseseseesssasnen « Clves [Clno
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XiV and complete the following table:
Amount
€ BeginnINg BAIANCE || .. ...t et ennre e sseresreerrera s e s st ererehan s st st sbnsteaenenn ic
d AJAItIons dUNNG the YBAr | | .. .....cccociiiieis ereriereietneacnsrerassss seas ereeas seressressssensssssssoneemeeseseseeameens id
e Distributions dUNGINB YBAr | . it et et et sreeennas sestenenns soee 1e
T OENAINGDAIANGCE | |, ... ooiooce et eieteeecee + aene emeeeretenertenes e on tetere oeen eern seeeeesteereeeaseeseenenees it
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, ne 210 [_Ives L_Ino
b_If "Yes,® explain the arrangement in Part XiV.
l Part V:'—::l Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered “Yes* to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
{a) Current year {b} Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e} Four years back
ta Beginning of yearbalance 794,248, 884,814, 364,972, 156,642 |
b Contributions ... .. ... 20,000, 255,000, 770,000, 100,000,
¢ Net investment eamings, gains, and losses
d Grants orscholarships . ...
e Other expenditures for faciiities
and programs  _ __.......eireernnnn. 135,325, 345,566, 250,158, -108,330.
f Administrative expenses .. ...
g Endofyearbalance _ ... ... 678,923, 794,248, 884,814, 364,972.|:

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the cumrent year end balance (ine 1g, column ()} held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment p
b Permanent endowment p>
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment 100,00 %

The percentages in lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization

%

%

by: Yes | No
3ali) X
3alit X
3b
Description of property (a) Cost or other {b) Cost or other {c} Accumulated {d) Book value
basis {investment) basis {other) depreclatlon
Ta Land . e e e e, =5 o
b Bulldings . ... 264,239. 62,320, 201,919,
c Leaseholdlmprovements ___________________________ 166,773. 122,651, 44,122,
d EQUIPMEN ... oo e s e e 330,507, 330,507, 0.
e Cther.
Total. Add lines 1a throtgh 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c)) . 246,041,
Schedule D (Form 980) 2011
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Schedule D {(Form 890) 2011

Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Foundation, Inc.

04-2943146 pags3

[Part VII[ Investments - Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category

(including name of security) (b) Book vaiue

(c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financlal derivatives
(2) Closely-held equity interests
(3) Other

()]

PO Pooled Investment

8)

Funds .

17,198,453,

End-of-Year Market Value

(@]

©

6

(5]

@

{H)

U}

Total. (Col (b) must equal Form 890, Part X, col (8) line 12.) >

17,198,453 | T ciamiai o2 F o T iR E s Ell srE e

| Part-Vili{ Investments - Program Related. See Form 990, Part X, ine 13.

(a) Description of Investment type {b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market valus

U]

)

8)

{4)

)

©]

(4]

{8

(]

(10)

otal. {Col (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 13.)

Total. {Col (b)

Part-IX| Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description

(b) Book value

(U]

)

3

)

{5)

()

@

()

©)

(10)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col B)line 15) ... . ... ...... oo .........

[Part X-] Other Liabllities. Ses Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1. {a) Description of liabliity {b) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
) Due to Children's Hospital 1,391,455.
@ Due to Children'’'s Sports Medicine
(4 Foundation, Inc 614,133,
) Due to Physicians' Organization 449,545,
) Severence plan obligation 2,812,385,
(7 Accrued deferred compensation
(8 obligation 2,477,025,
@ Patient credit balances 16,407,
100 Accrued professional liabillity 1,019,717.
(h)]
Total, (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (8} ine 25.) ... ... » 8,780,667,

2, FIN 48 {ASC 740

01.23-12

Schedule D (Form 990) 2011




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Schedule D (Form 890) 2011 Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 paged
[PartXi:] Reconclliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 980 to Audited Financial Statements
1 Total revenus (Form 990, Part VI, column {A), lins 12) 1 39,288,209,
2 Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 38,522, 316.
3 Excess or (defich) for the year. Subtract line 2 from lins 1 3 765,893,
4  Net unreallzed gains (losses) on Investments ___ 4 -180,275.
6 Donated services and use of facllities | . . 5
6 Investmentexpenses . ... .. 6
7 Prior period adjustments ... ... 7
8 Other{DescribeinPartXiV) . ... ... 8
9 Total adjustments (net). Add lines 4 through 8 ____ R I | -180,275.
10 Excess or (deficit) for the year per audited ﬂnanclal statements. Combine fines 3 and 9. 10 585,618.

Part:Xll:] Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financlal statements
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 890, Part VI, line 12:
a Nstunrealized gains on Investments 2a -180, 275,

b Donated services and use of facllitles 2b

© Recoveries of prioryear grants e e s 2c
d Other(Describain PartXIV) . ... .. | 2d 135,325.[
e Addlines 2athrough 2d | e e e e oo e e oo -44,950,

s Sy 2atoun 56 - e et 4 seeree s et ¢ s @ s eonea ceee aneran AR R

39,243,259,

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part Viil, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill,line7b ... ... 4a
b Other(Describe InPartXIV) | s et e e e 4b
C AddiNes4aand db | | L i s et et et et eee e e e eearatens on ereeneee e i 0.

5 Total revenus. Add lines 3 and 4c. (ZQIS must equal Form 990, Part |, ine 12} 39,288, 2009.

IEarl;)_(l_ll Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
1 Totalexpenses and losses per audited financlal statements e e, 38,522,316,
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

Donated services anduse of faclliies .. . ... ... ... 2a

Prior year adjustments 2b

OtNerioSSeS .. ... oo et e e eeeteeees e et rereees eaeeenerene e enene sesesmsenrne 2c
Other (Describe INPart XIV) . .. .. i e e e L 20
Addlines 2athrough 2d | L L o s e e e eaeres emvenraen & ereerene e
3 Sublractline 20 from NG 1 . .. s e e e s et e+ e e e eeveeeeresreeeaes
4 Amounts included on Form 980, Part IX, ine 25, but not on line 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 980, Part Vill, tne7b . ... . .. .. | 48
b Other{Descrbe InPartXIV.) .. s e e s e ab
C AdINes4aand dD e e oo e 0.
Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part |, line 18.) .. .. cooveeerve e oo . 38,524,316,
] ParD(W] Supplemental Information
Compilste this part to provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part i}, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part
X, Iine 2; Part X1, ine 8; Part XII, lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xl lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additlonal information.
Part V, line 4: Assets limited to use represent assets held in trust

[ T - N - T = i ]

0.
38,522, 316.

that are available to pay for future benefits to participants of the

deferred compensation plans and investments whose use has been restricted

by donors to a specific time period or purpose.

Part XII, Line 2d - Other Adjustments:

Net assets released from restrictions 135,325,

. Schedule D (Form 990) 2011
132054
01-23-12




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery
Schedule D (Form 990) 2011 Foundation, Inc, 04-2943146 pages
Pa Supplemental Information (continued)

Part X, FIN 48 Footnote:

The Foundation is a tax-exempt corporation as described in Section

501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code), and is exempt from

federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the

Code. In addition, the Foundation gqualifies for the charitable

contribution deduction under Section 170(b){(1)(A), and has been classified

as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section

509(a)(2). Tax-exempt organlzatlons could be required to record an

obligation for income taxes as the result of a tax position they have

historically taken on various tax exposure items including unrelated

business income or tax status. Management of the ‘Foundation has evaluated

the positions taken on the Foundation's filed tax returns and has

concluded that no uncertain income tax positions exist at June 30, 2012.

The Foundation's tax years from 2009 through 2012 are potentially subject

to examination.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2011
132055
01-23-12
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 950,

OMB No. 1645-0047

Department of the Treasury Part IV line 23. ST h 3

Internal Revenue Service P Attach to Form 990. h See separate instructions, - ECHON == - .

Name of the organization Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Employer Identifi Gation numbar
Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146

[Part -] Questions Regarding Compensation

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form 930,
Part Vil, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part lif to provide any relevant information regarding these items.

First-class or charter trave! Housing allowance or residences for personal use

Travel for companions |:] Payments for business use of personal residence
Tax indemnification and gross-up payments D Health or social ¢lub duss or Initiation fees

Oiscretionary spending account —J Personal services (e.g., mald, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? if “No,® complete Part Ili to explain

2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all officers, directors,
trustees, and the CEQ/Executive Director, regarding the items checked In line 1a?

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization’s
CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not chack any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEO/Executlve Director. Explaln In Part iil.

Compensation committee Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant IE Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee

4 During the year, did any persen listed in Form 990, Part Vil, Ssction A, lins 1a, with respsct to the filing
organization or a related organization-
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment?

-2
éo
o)
o
=8
@
=)
o
=
a
[+]
@
<
@
2
<
3
@
=}
=
-
]
3
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o
o
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k=2
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3
©
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=
=3
3
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=
o
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=
@
Q
a
=
=
[
3
]
=~
=~
o,
o
p=)
D

¢ Participate in, or recelve payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? .

If "Yes"® to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part Il

Only section 501(c}3) and 501(c){4) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed In Form 890, Part VI, Section A, line 14, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
a The organization?
b Any related organization?
If *Yes* to line 5a or §b, describe in Part Ill,
6 For persons listed In Form 290, Part V1I, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net eamings of:
a The organization?
b Any related organization?
If *Yes" to line Ba or Bb, descnbse In Part lIl.
7 For persons listed In Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non fixed payments

not described in lines 5 and 62 If "Yes," describe in Part Wl .. o, 7 X
8 Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
Initial contract exception described In Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If *Yes,” desciibe inPartmt 8 X
9 If "Yes" to line 8, dId the organization alsc follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? . . e . e oo .| 9
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Not|ce, see the Inslruchons 1or Form 990 Schedule J (Form 990) 2011
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SCHEDULE L
(Form 980 or 990-EZ)

Transactions With Interested Persons

P> Complete if the organlzation answered

"Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 28b, or 28¢,

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b.
P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. p> See separate instructions.

OMB No 1545-0047

= inspestion= -

Nams of the organization
Foundation, Inc.

Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Employer identlfication number

04-2943146

| l?a_r'_t:l_.--| Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3) and section 501(c){4) organizations only).
Complete if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 930, Part 1V, line 25a or 25b, or Form 980-EZ, Part V, line 40b.

1 {a) Name of disqualified person {b) Description of transaction (c) Corrected?
Yes No
2 Enter the amount of tax imposed on the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under
SBCHONAGBB | L i et eees emseeeetate e eeeeens otoemeteetaneseseessseee +evseras s e sens
3 Enter the amount of tax, If any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization
| Partll | Loansto and/or From Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 28, or Form 890-EZ, Part V, line 38a.
{a) Name of interested {b) Loan to or from | {c) Original principal | (d) Balance due (e} In ({,)yl}%)arr%vg‘;f {g) Written
person and purpose the organization? amount default? com 2 | agreement?
To From Yes No Yes No Yes No
Donald Bae, MD - X 400,000. 160,000. X X X
Daniel Hedeqgquist, X 400,000, 66,6606, X X X
Samantha Spencer, X 350,000, 140,000. X X X
Minindexr Kocher, X 640,000, 256,000. X X X
Dennis Krammer, M X 100,000, 40,000. X X X
Dennisg Krammer, M X 300,000, 120,000. X X X
Yi-Meng Yen, MD - X 100,000. 0. X X X
Travls Matheney - X 100,000. 40,000. X X X
Martha Murray, MD X 400,000. 350,000, X X X
Lawrence Karlin - X 300,000. 180,000. X X X
Totel .., .. ..o P 1,992,666.5 5 i
|PartJli-}] Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes” on Form 890, Part IV, line 27,
{a) Name of Interested person {b) Relatlonship between interested person and (c} Amount and typs of
the organization assistance

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Nolice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

See Part V for Continuations

132131 01-18-12
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Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Scheduls L (Form 980 or 990-€2) 2011 Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 page2
 Part 1V.| Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.

Complete if the organlzation answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28¢c.

{a) Nams of Interested person (b} Refationship between Interested {¢) Amount of {d) Description of é?ffﬁ'ﬂgn“
person and the organlzation transaction transaction |gevenues? s
Yes No

[Part.V- | Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see Instructions).

Schedule I,, Part II, Loans To and From Interested Persons:

(a) Name of Person: Donald Bae, MD

(a) Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a) Name of Person: Daniel Hedequist, MD

{a) Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a) Name of Person: Samantha Spencer, MD

(a) Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a) Name of Person: Mininder Kocher, MD

(a) Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a) Name of Person: Dennis Krammer, MD

(a) Purpose of Loan: Recruitment

(a) Name of Person: Dennis Krammer, MD

(a) Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a) Name of Person: Yi-Meng Yen, MD

132132
01-19-12
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Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-£2) 2011_Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 page2

Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Part V—| Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide additional Information for responses to questlons on Schedule L (see instructions).

(a)

Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a)

Name of Person: Travis Matheney

(a)

Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a)

Name of Person: Martha Murray, MD

(a)

Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a)

Name of Person: Lawrence Karlin

{(a) Purpose of Loan: Retention

(a) Name of Person: Michael Glotzbecker, MD
{(a) Purpose of Loan: Recruitment

(b) Loan to or from organization? = From
(c) Original Principal Amount § 100,000. (d) Balance Due § 60,000.
{(e) Loan in Default? = No

(f) Approved by Board or Committee? = Yes
(g) Written Agreement? = Yes

(a) Name of Person: Benton Heyworth, MD

(a) Purpose of Loan: Recruitment

(b) Loan to or from organization? = From

(c)

Original Principal Amount § 100,000. (d) Balance Due § 80,000.

(e)

Loan in Default? = No

(£)

Approved by Board or Committee? = Yes

(g)

Written Agreement? = Yes

(a)

Name of Persgon: Yi-Meng Yen, MD

05-01-11

Schedule L (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2011




Children's Orthopaedic Surgery
Scheduls L (Form 980 or 990 £2 2011_Foundation, Inc. ‘ 04-2943146 page2
] Part V-] Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide additlonal information for responses to questions on Schedule L (ses instructions).

{a) Purpose of Loan: Retention

(b) Loan to or from organization? = From

(c) Original Principal Amount $§ 400,000. (d) Balance Due $ 400,000.

(e) Loan in Default? = No

(f) Approved by Board or Committee? = Yes

(g) Written Agreement? = Yes

{({a) Name of Person: Benjamin Shore, MD

(a) Purpose of Loan: Retention

(b) Loan to or from organization? = From

{(c) Original Principal Amount § 100,000. (d) Balance Due § 100,000.

(e) Loan in Default? = No

(£) Approved by Board or Committee? = Yes

(g) Written Agreement? = Yes

TSZIET
05-01-11 Schedule L {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011




SCHEDULE 0 Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ °%‘f‘5'f."

(Form 880 or 980-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. -T-Open to Public: =
e o e P Attach to Form 980 or 990-EZ. ~Elinspection:= 2. .
Name of the organlzation Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Employer Identification number
Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146

Form 990, Part I, Line 1, Description of Organization Mission:

educational services to Boston Children's Hospital and Harvard Medical

School. The Foundation also provides care for patients located in

Massachusetts in need of orthopaedic services, regardless of their

ability to pay, as well as providing and subsidizing hospital and

community based services that are limited in the community.

Form 990, Part III, Line 1, Description of Organization Mission:

neuromugcular, and post traumatic problems of the musculoskeletal

system. The Foundation also provides care for patients in need of

orthopaedlc services, regardless of their ability to pay.

Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 3: The Physicians' Organization at

Children's Hospital, Inc. (the PO) is a Class "C" member of Children's

Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation). The PO is

regpongible for all third party contracting for the Foundation. The PO has

the power to select the independent auditor and legal counsel of the

Foundation from an approved list of firms mutually agreed to by the PO and

the Foundation. The PO also has the right to review, but not to approve,

the annual operating budget and all capital budgets of the Foundation.

Lastly, the PO has the right to review for compliance with applicable law,

the general terms of and any modification to physician compensation and

benefit plans for all physician employees of the Foundation.

Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 6: The Children's Orthopaedic Surgery

Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) has three classes of members. The Chief

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 890-EZ, Schedule O {(Form 890 or 990-EZ) (2011}
132211
03-23-12




Schedule O (Form 990 or 980-EZ) (2011) . _ Page2
Name of the organization Chilldren's Orthopaedic Surgery Employer identification number
Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146

of the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery (the Department) of Boston

Children's Hospital is a Class "A" member. Each person who is a member of

the Foundation, other than the Chief of the Department, may become a Class

"B" member of the Foundation upon recommendation by the Class "A" member

and approval of the Class "B" members. The Physicians' Organization at

Children's Hospltal, Inc. 1s a Class "C" member of the Foundation.

Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 7a: According to the Articles of

Organization, the Chief of the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery of Boston

Children’'s Hospital is the Class "A" member of Children's Orthopaedic

Surgery Foundation, Inc. (the Foundatlon). Each person who is a member of

the Foundation, other than the Chief of the Department, is a Class "B"

member of the Foundation. The Class "A" and "B" members of the Foundation

elect the Board of Directors from nominees presented by the Executive

Committee at their annual meeting. Each member is entitled to one vote upon

any question at any meeting of the members.

Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 7b: The Physicians' Organization at

Children's Hospital, Inc. (the PO) is a Class "C" member of Children's

Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation). The PO is

responsible for all third party contracting for the Foundation. The PO has

the power to select the independent auditor and legal counsel of the

Foundation from an approved list of firms mutually agreed to by the PO and

the Foundation. The PO also has the right to review, but not to approve,

the annual operating budget and all capital budgets of the Foundation.

Lastly, the PO has the right to review for compliance with applicable law,

the general terms of and any modification to physiclan compensation and

benefit plans for all physician employees of the Foundation. As a Class

A Schedule O (Form 890 or 990-E2) (2011}




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E3 (2011) . . Page 2
Name of the organization C dren’'s Orthopaedic Surgery Employer identification number
Foundation, Inc, 04-2943146

"¢" member of the Foundation, the PO attends the Foundation's annual

meeting.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, line 11: The detailed review will be

conducted by the President of the Foundation, James R. Kasser, MD and the

accountant, Dean Bauer. A copy of Form 990 will be provided to the Board

prior to filing. The detailed review will be conducted before filing the

return with the Internal Revenue Service.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 12c: The Physicians' Organization at

Children's Hospital, Inc. (the PO) administers an annual conflict of

interest disclosure process to all of its member Foundations, which asks

physicians (officers, top management, and highly compensated employees) and

selected Foundation staff to disclose potential conflicts. A disclosure

statement will be circulated annually to members of the PO. The audit

committee shall determine those individuals (including medical staff

members) who shall be required to complete the disclosure statement. The

audit committee, at its discretion, may either: 1) refer any or all

gstatements to the Board of Directors; 2) appoint an ad hoc committee to

review and resolve any conflict of interest issues; or 3) review and

resolve any conflict of intexest personally or through a designee(s). Any

person not recelving a disclosure statement has an affirmative obligation

to disclose to the PO President, PO General Counsel, or his/her supervisor

whenever he/she believes he/she has or may have a conflict of interest.

Similarly, each person completing a disclosure statement has an affirmative

obligation to update the statement any time circumstances change and/or

he/she believes that a conflict of interest may exist. 1In the event a

conflict of interest is found to exist, the Foundation prohibits the member
e Schedule O (Form 890 or 990-EZ) (2011)




Schedule O (Form 930 ar 990Elgz (2011) Page 2
Name of the organization Chil drel:l 's Orthopaedic sSurgery Employer identification number
Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146

from voting on any matter to which the conflict relates or otherwise

influence the voting on such matter.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 15: All the physicians (top management,

officers, and highly compensated individuals) fall under compensation

guidelines determined by Harvard University with limitations established

for certain positions/ranks within the medical school. Annually,

compensation is reviewed and reported to Boston Children's Hospital's (the

Hospital) Board of Trustees to ensure that total direct and indirect

compensation does not exceed the pre-determined guidelines of Harvard

University. Any new indirect benefit plan requires approval by the

Foundation's Board of Directors, which then must be reviewed and permitted

by the Hospital. Major procedures of the approval process involve:

comparing compensation data of physicians within the comparable field of

medicine; indirect compensation currently being offered; and the financial

stabllity of the Foundation. The process was followed for year ended June

30, 2012.

Form 990, Part VI, Section C, Line 19: The Foundation maintains all

financial records, conflict of intexest policies, and governing documents

at its main office at 300 Longwood Avenue, Boston, MA 02115. The

documents are available upon reguest.

Form 990, Part XI, line 5, Changes in Net Assgets:

Net unrealized losses on investments: -180,275,

Part XII, Question 2c: The audit process has not changed from the

rior year.
012312 Schedule O (Form 890 or 890-EZ) (2011)
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Children's Orthopaedic Surgery
Schedule R (Form 990) 2011 Foundation, Inc. 04-2943146 pages
art Vil | Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide additlonal information for responses to questions on Scheduls R (ses instructions).
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/(101 SENT vatH <SToodp & XTENS/ON PEz- MNCRELE )4

. 3868 Application for Extension of Time To File an

J -

v, amuary 20121 Exempt Organization Retumn OMB No.1545.4708
Dapartment of the Treasury P File a separate applicatlon for each return.

Intesnat Aevenue Service

o [f you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part | and check this box .. R - |
* If you are filing for an Additional (Not Automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part il (on page 2 of thrs form)
Do not complete Part Il uniless you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868.

Etectronic filing (e-file). You can electronlcally file Form 8868 it you need a 3-month automatic extension of time to file (6 months for
a corporatton required to file Form 830-T), or an additional (not automatic) 3-month extension of time. You can electronically file Form
8868 to request an extension of time to file any of the forms listed in Part | or Part Il with the exception of Form 8870, Information
Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit Contracts, which must be sent to the (RS in paper format (see
instructions). For more detalls on the electronic filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/efile and click on e-file for Charities & Nonprofits.

FZXIE  Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original {no copies needed).
A corporation required to file Form 990-T and requesting an automatic 6-month extension—check this box and complete
Partlonly . . . . ... P>

Alf other corporations ﬂncludlng i 120 C ﬁle/s), pannershlps REMICs and trusrs musr use Form 7004 to requesl an extension of time
to file income tax returns.

Enter tiler's identifying numbaer, see instructions

Type or Name of exempt orgamization or olher filer, see instructions. Employer identification number [EIN}) or
print g
Number, street, and reom or suite no I a P Q. box. see instructions. Seclal secutity number {SSN)

File by the

due date for D

ting your City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a forelgn address, see Instructions.

return, See

nstruchons

Enter the Return code for the retum that this application is for (file a separate application foreachreturn) . . . . . . ED
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code |}!s For Code
Form 890 01 Form 990-T (corporation) 07
Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08
Form 990-EZ o1 Form 4720 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11
Form 980-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12

° The books are in the care of P

TelephongNo & FAXNo.» .
¢ If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States. check thisbox. . . . . . . . . 20O
e If this is for a Group Return, enter the crganization’s four digit Group Exemption Number {GEN) fthisis
for the whole group, check thisbox . . . B [].lfitis for part of the group, check thisbox . . . . P [Jand attach

a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension Is for.
1 | request an automatic 3-month (6 months for a corporation required to file Form 990-T} extension of time

unth ,20 ___,to tile the exempt organization return for the organization named above. The extension is
for the orgamzation's return for:

& (3 calendar year 20 or

B> [] tax year beginning , 20 , and endng ,20

2 |f the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: [J Initial return [JFinal return
{1 Change in accounting period

3a |If tius application is for Form 990-Bl., 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a |9

b If this application is for Form 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6089, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b |$

¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by using
EFTPS (Electronic Faderal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3¢ IS

Cautlon. If you are golng lo make an electranic fund withdravral with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EQ and Formn 8879-EQ for payment instructlons.
For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see Instructions. Cat. No 27918D Form 8868 (Rev 1-2012)




Form 8868 (Rev 1-2012) Page 2

¢ if you are filing for an Additional {(Not Automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part il and check thisbox . . . . »

Note. Only complete Part Il if you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868.
* {f you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extenslon, complete only Part | (on page 1).

XX Additional (Not Automatic) 3-Month Extension of Time. Only file the original (no copies needed).
Enter filer's identifying number, see instructions

Type or Name of exempt organization or other filer, scao instructions, Employer identfication number (EIN) or
print Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. 04-2843148

Fulo by the Number, street, and room or sulte no. If a P.O box, see instructions. Social securnty number (SSN)
duedatefor |300 Longwood Avenue 0

:’;‘fl‘?’:‘g’;e City. town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, ses instructions.

instructons. | Boston, MA 02115

Enter the Return code for the retumn that this application is for (file a separate application foreach return) . . . . . .
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Gode |lIs For Code
Form 890 01
Farm 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08
Form 990-E2 01 Form 4720 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec. 401{a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12

STOP1 Do not comptlete Part If if you were not already granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868.

* The books are in the care of » Dean Bauer, 300 Longwood Avertue, Boston, MA 02115

Telephone No. > T617-355.8689 TTTEAXNe» T N/A
« if the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, checkthisbox . . . . . . . . » (O
* If this Is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) N/A .l this is
for the whole group, check this box . . ¥ . Witis for part of the group, check this box . . . » [landattacha
list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for.
4  Irequest an additional 3-month extension of time until .....May1s .20 13
$ Forcalendaryear , or other tax year beginning __ July 1 ,20 11, and ending June 30 ,20 12 .

6 If the tax year entered in hine 51s for Jess than 12 months, check reason: [ Initial return [ Final return
(O Change in accounting period
7  State in detail why you need the extension
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BAKER|NEWMAN|NOYES

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Children's Orthopaedic Surgery
Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related statements of operations and
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the results of

its operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

\Ba.l@r l\)aman ’%‘5

Boston, Massachusetts Limited Liability Company
December 19, 2012

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
accounts of $315,170 in 2012 and $275,420 in 2011
Due from Children's Hospital
Due from Physicians' Organization
Due from Children's Sports Medicine Foundation, Inc.
Due from Harvard Medical School
Notes receivable — employees
Prepaid expenses and other
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use:
Board designated
Restricted funds

Property and equipment, net
Notes receivable — employees, net of current portion
Total assets

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to Children's Hospital
Due to Children's Sports Medicine Foundation, Inc.
Due to Physicians' Organization
Patient deposits
Total current liabilities

Accrued professional liability

Accrued deferred compensation obligation
Accrued severance plan obligation

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

2012 2011
$ 8314352 § 7,422,264
30,680,909 30,192,023
3,836,674 3,534,388
579,080 276,076
54,423 1,035,819
1,088,757 1,287,508
128,548 51,377
781,166 701,167
160,255 67,277
45,624,164 44,567,899
5,289,409 4,934,097
678,923 794,248
5,968,332 5,728,345
246,041 252,188
1,408,500 1,729,666
$ 53,247,037 __$ 52,278,098
$ 388,081 $ 571,432
1,391,456 1,157,924
614,133 1,044,317
449,545 162,876
16,407 5,154
2,859,622 2,941,703
1,019,717 909,627
2,477,024 2,123,176
2,812,385 2,810,921
9,168,747 8,785,427
43,399,366 42,698,423
678,923 794,248
44,078,289 43,492,671
$ 53,247,037  $ 52,278,008




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.

Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Patient service revenue, net of
contractual allowances and discounts

Less provision for bad debts

Patient service revenue, net

Other revenues:
Other service revenue
Service, research and other miscellaneous revenue
Administration, supervision, and teaching revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Program expenses
Contributions — Children's Hospital
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Nonoperating gains (losses):

Investment income

Change in value of the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Total nonoperating gains (losses)
Excess of revenues over expenses

Temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions
Decrease in temporarily restricted net assets
Increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

2012 2011
$ 27,902,163  $ 24,969,375
915,458 642,718
26,986,705 24,326,657
9,749,188 10,274,049
526,913 812,568
370,362 367,960
135,325 345,566
37,768,493 36,126,300
21,659,529 21,215,356
5,027,910 75,000
10,919,419 10,045,230
37,606,858 31,335,586
161,635 4,791,214
719,583 544,695
(190,702) 1,745,885
10,427 (110,229)
539,308 2,180,351
700,943 6,971,565
20,000 255,000
(135,325) (345,566)
(115,325) (90,566)
585,618 6,880,999
43,492,671 36,611,672
$ 44,078,289  $ 43,492,671




I CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
I Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
2012 2011
: Operating activities:
3 I Increase in net assets $ 585,618 $ 6,880,999
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
l Restricted contributions (20,000) (255,000)
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments (10,427) 110,229
Change in value of the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund 190,702 (1,745,885)
l Depreciation 16,712 16,272
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Investments classified as trading (669,161) (6,145,110)
I Accounts receivable, net (302,286) 96,222
Due from Children's Hospital (303,004) 99,911
Due from Physicians' Organization 981,396 (350,303)
I Due from Harvard Medical School (77,171) 137,849
Due from Children's Sports Medicine Foundation, Inc. 198,751 (306,177)
Prepaid expenses and other (92,978) (10,696)
I Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (183,351) 40,609
Due to Children's Hospital 233,532 181,605
l Due to Physicians' Organization 286,669 162,876
Due to Children's Sports Medicine Foundation, Inc. (430,184) 892,392
Patient deposits 11,253 (49,929)
Accrued severance plan obligation 1,464 291,591
I Accrued deferred compensation obligation 353,848 611,986
Accrued professional liability 110,090 166,167
I Net cash provided by operating activities 881,473 825,608
Investing activities:
Decrease in notes receivable — employees 241,167 151,167
I Increase in assets limited as to use (239,987) (813,011)
Purchases of property and equipment (10,565) —
Net cash used in investing activities (9,385) (661,844)
. Financing activities:
Proceeds from restricted contributions 20,000 255,000
l Net cash provided by financing activities 20,000 255,000
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 892,088 418,764
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,422,264 7,003,500
I Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 8,314,352 $ 7,422264
I See accompanying notes.
l 4



CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of the Foundation

Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), located in Boston, Massachusetts,
was incorporated on November 1, 1986 as a not-for-profit corporation under Massachusetts General
Laws, Chapter 180. It is an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code.

The Foundation was organized and operates exclusively for the benefit of Children's Hospital (the
Hospital) and the Harvard Medical School (Harvard). The Foundation is subject to established
policies, practices and procedures of the Hospital and Harvard.

Organized exclusively for charitable, scientific and educational purposes, the Foundation provides
orthopaedic surgery services primarily to patients at the Hospital and its satellite locations. The
Foundation carries on and promotes basic and applied medical research and education in the field of
orthopaedics by teaching students and other medical and scientific personnel, by providing or
supplementing income to research personnel through fellowships, research grants and stipends; and by
giving lectures and publishing information concerning problems and research results in the field of
pediatric orthopaedics in order to educate the general public and the medical profession.

The Foundation may charge for patient care, other medical services and related products, provided that
any net income be used exclusively for the charitable, scientific and educational purposes for which
the Foundation was created. The Foundation accommodates patients from around the world, but
patients are primanly from the Northeast.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions.
These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include financial instruments with original maturities of less than 90 days,
excluding amounts included in assets limited as to use. The Foundation maintains cash balances with
financial institutions that may exceed federal depository insurance limits; however, management
believes the credit risk related to these financial institutions is minimal. The Foundation has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes the Foundation is not exposed to
any significant risk at June 30, 2012,




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and Investment Income

The Foundation classifies its investments as trading, with investment income (including realized and
unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) included in the excess of revenues
over expenses uniess the income is restricted by donor or law. Investments in marketable equity and
debt securities and mutual funds are carried at quoted market values of the investments at the
statements of financial position date,

Investments include amounts invested in the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund. The Foundation's policy is
to record its ownership interest in these investments using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the Foundation recognizes its share of the increase or the decrease of the fund's fair
value as a nonoperating gain or loss.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rates, credit, and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will occur in the
near terms and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of

- financial position, operations and changes in net assets.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use represent assets held in trust that are available to pay for future benefits to
participants of the deferred compensation and severance plans, and investments whose use has been
restricted by donors to a specific time period or purpose.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or in the case of gifts, at fair market value when received.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged against operations. Certain equipment
purchases are donated to the Hospital and charged against operations. Depreciation is computed on
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Estimated lives will vary
by asset category.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is a tax-exempt corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code, and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the
Code. In addition, the Foundation qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section
509(a)(2).

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a
tax position they have historically taken on various tax exposure items, including unrelated business
income or tax status. Management of the Foundation has evaluated the positions taken on the
Foundation's filed tax returns and has concluded that no uncertain income tax positions exist at
June 30, 2012. The Foundation's tax years from 2009 through 2012 are potentially subject to
examination.




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Professional Liability

The Foundation and its physicians/employees are insured against professional liability by Controlled
Risk Insurance Company, Ltd. (CRICO), a corporation formed and wholly owned by the Harvard-
affiliated medical institutions. The policy is written on a claims-made basis. Management is not
aware of any uninsured claims or other matters that would materially affect the amounts provided for
professional liability coverage in the financial statements.

Net Assets

The Foundation is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
permanently restricted net assets.

Net assets, and related revenues, expenses, gains, and losses, are classified based upon the existence of
donor-imposed restrictions, if any. Accordingly, net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets — net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. These
assets represent the resources over which the Board of Directors has discretionary control to use in
carrying on the operations of the Foundation.

Unrestricted — Board Designated Net Assets — net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations which have been designated by the Board of Directors for specific purposes. The
Board of Directors has designated a portion of investments to fund the Foundation's deferred
compensation and severance plan obligations which totaled $5,289,409 and $4,934,097 at June 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
These assets represent the resources that have been restricted by the donor for recruitment,
research activities and quality improvement initiatives. As related expenses are incurred, the
assets are released from restrictions.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Hospital contributed $125,000 to the Foundation. These
assets are temporarily restricted by the donor for use in recruitment for physicians and quality
improvement initiatives.

Harvard Medical Facility Physicians at Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center, Inc. made a
donation to the Foundation of $130,000 in the year ended June 30, 2011 to send physicians to
Florence, Italy to perform services and training to participating hospitals.

Waltz Zimbler Leg Foundation made a donation to the Foundation of $20,000 in the year ended
June 30, 2012 to be applied to the cost of orthopedic surgery for a child who is disabled due to leg
problems. ’




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Patient Service Revenue, Net

Patient service revenue, net is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated contractual allowances under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors and uncollectable accounts reflected as a provision
for bad debt.

Charitable Care

The Foundation provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under the Foundation's free care
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Foundation does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as free care, they are not reported as revenue.

The Foundation maintains records to identify and monitor the level of free care it provides. The
Foundation identified $334,690 and $121,917 of foregone charges for services furnished under its
free-care policy for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. To calculate the cost
associated with these charges, the Foundation utilizes a cost to charge ratio. The total cost of
providing care for patients that qualified for free care was $258,998 and $95,996 for the years ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In addition to providing free care, the Foundation supports other expenses relating to research and
training of residents and fellows, as well as direct contributions related to support of its tax-exempt
purposes. Such amounts were $6,669,929 and $2,546,351 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Operating Income

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care
services, educational and research activities are reported as operating revenue and expenses.
Peripheral or incidental transactions, which include investment income, and realized and unrealized
gains and losses on investments, are reported as nonoperating gains and losses.

Excess of Revenues over Expenses

The statements of operations and changes in net assets include excess of revenues over expenses.
Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from excess of revenues over expenses,
consistent with industry practice, include permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other
than goods and services and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using
contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

Patient Deposits

The balance of this account represents deposits received in the current year for services to be
performed subsequent to the fiscal year end.




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2011 statements of operations and changes in net assets have been reclassified
to reflect the adoption of changes to the presentation of the provision for bad debts, which has been
reclassified from an operating expense to a deduction from net patient service revenue. There was no
impact to the statement of financial position or the excess of revenues over expenses attributable to the
Foundation for all periods presented as a result of this change.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by management to
determine whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.
Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 19, 2012 which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Related Party Transactions
Operations

The Foundation was organized and is operated exclusively for the benefit of the Hospital and Harvard.
Certain key members of the Foundation's management are employees of the Hospital. The statement
of principles and procedures between the Foundation and the Hospital provides that the Orthopaedic
Surgeon-in-Chief of the Hospital shall be the president of the Foundation. Under the Harvard system
of joint appointments, each member of the Department of Orthopaedic Surgery is also a faculty
member of Harvard Medical School and is automatically a member of the Foundation and has
privileges at the Hospital. The Foundation's budgets are subject to the Hospital's approval.
Accordingly, the Board of Trustees of the Hospital may have significant influence over the
Foundation's operating procedures.

Transactions

The Foundation receives income from the Hospital and Harvard for providing administration,
supervision and teaching services. Total income earned from the Hospital amounted to $340,971 and
$342,842 the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Total income earned from Harvard
amounted to $29,391 and $25,118 during the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Certain physician employees of the Foundation also perform services for Children's Sports Medicine
Foundation, Inc. (Sports Medicine). Sports Medicine performs all the support services for this activity
and bills for the services performed. By mutual agreement between the two Foundations, Sports
Medicine withholds certain fees and remits the balance of net collections to the Foundation where alt
the practice expenses for the physicians are paid. Sports Medicine remitted to the Foundation
$5,235,060 and $5,062,962 during the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. In other
related party transactions, the total amounts paid to Sports Medicine amounted to $733,672 and
$720,869 for years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Related Party Transactions (continued)

In an effort to generate cost savings, the Hospital has a purchased services program in which the
Foundation participates. Medical and office supplies (and a variety of other services) are ordered by
the Foundation through the Hospital's purchasing department. Certain Hospital employees perform
medical support and administrative services for the Foundation, and the Foundation uses certain
Hospital medical and administrative equipment.

Included in operating expenses are expense reimbursements to the Hospital for expenses incurred on
the Foundation's behalf in the amount of $6,226,954 and $5,528,468 for the years ended June 30, 2012
and 2011, respectively. These include reimbursements to the Hospital for salaries and fringes in the
amount of $6,018,759 and $5,253,796 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In addition, the Foundation acquires professional liability malpractice insurance through Children's
Hospital, as part of a pool that includes physicians affiliated with Harvard. Malpractice insurance
expense amounted to $848,625 and $835,620 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Due to Physicians' Organization

The Physicians' Organization at Children's Hospital, Inc. (the P.O.) serves as a Class C member of the
Foundation. Working in conjunction with Children's Hospital, the P.O. provides coordination and
general oversight of their pediatric clinical and surgical practices and related health care services. The
P.O. charges the Foundation dues for these services and for direct costs associated with managing the
P.O. Pooled Investment Fund. The Foundation paid the P.O. dues in the amount of $285,122 and
$189,148 during the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Foundation participates in the P.O.'s group health and dental insurance programs. The
Foundation paid the P.O. $253,892 and $182,086 for such insurances during the years ended June 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

The balance of due to P.O. represents amounts due to the P.O. for membership dues. The amount due
to the P.O. was $449,545 and $162,876 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Due from Physicians' Organization

The P.O. and the Hospital have entered into a financial risk sharing agreement to jointly provide
clinical and financial oversight of ambulatory centers for the delivery of services by the Hospital and
affiliated physician foundations. The agreement calls for the Hospital to provide billing and collection
services and to reimburse the P.O., if the ambulatory centers yield a surplus from operations on an
annual basis. The P.O. is not required, but elected to distribute $1,302,861 for the year ended June 30,
2011 to the Foundation for its participation at these ambulatory centers. The P.O. also leases an
employee from the Foundation. The P.O. paid the Foundation $421,088 and $414,224 for the years
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The balance of this account represents amounts due from the P.O. for the Foundation's participation in
these ambulatory centers and for a leased employee. The total amounts due from the P.O. amounted to
$54,423 and $1,035,819 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Related Party Transactions (continued)
Due from Children's Sports Medicine Foundation

The balance of this account represents amounts due from Sports Medicine for patient services and
certain shared expenses. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, Sports Medicine owed the Foundation
$1,088,757 and $1,287,508, respectively.

Due to Children's Sports Medicine Foundation

The balance of this account represents amounts due to Sports Medicine for services performed related
to certain Foundation employees. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Foundation owed Sports Medicine
$614,133 and $1,044,317, respectively.

Due from Children's Hospital

The balance of this account represents amounts due from the Hospital primarily for grants, salary and
fringe reimbursements, and certain other transactions. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Hospital owed
the Foundation $579,080 and $276,076, respectively.

Due to Children's Hospital

The balance of this account represents amounts due to the Hospital primarily for purchased services
and certain other transactions. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Foundation owed the Hospital
$1,391,456 and $1,157,924, respectively.

Contributions — Children's Hospital

In September 2011, the Foundation voted to donate $5,000,000 to the Hospital to set up the Clinical
Research Department Fund. The contribution was paid in November 2011. In addition, the
Foundation also made several smaller donations to the Hospital totaling $27,910 and $75,000 during
the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Due from Harvard Medical School

The balance of this account represents amounts due from Harvard for providing teaching services and
reimbursement for research related expenses. Harvard owed the Foundation $128,548 and $51,377,
which includes reimbursements due to others included in accrued expenses, at June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

P.O. Pooled Investment Fund, LL.C

In 2007, the P.O. established the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund, LLC (the P.O. Pooled Investment

- Fund) for the benefit of its affiliated physician foundations. The P.O. is the manager of the P.O.

Pooled Investment Fund. The P.O. Pooled Investment Fund attempts to mirror the investment
performance of the Hospital's endowment fund, and all investment decisions are made based on the
actions of the Hospital's investment committee. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Foundation's
investment amounted to $17,198,453 and $17,389,155, respectively, in the P.O. Pooled Investment
Fund. The Foundation accounts for its ownership interests in the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund under
the equity method of accounting.

11




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value and include the following at June 30:

2012 2011

Cash and cash equivalents $ 347,574 $ 182,882
Corporate bonds 5,369,719 5,204,342
Municipal bonds 1,809,052 2,289,773
U.S. Treasury notes 538,730 -

Interest in the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund 17,198,453 17,389,155
Mortgage-backed securities 5,417,381 5,125,871
Total investments — operating $ 30,680,909 $ 30,192,023

The following schedule summarizes the investment return (including interest bearing operating cash
and cash equivalent accounts) and its classification as nonoperating gains (losses) in the statements of
operations and changes in net assets for the years ended June 30:

2012 2011
Income:
Interest and dividends $ 719,583 $ 544,695
Change in value of the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund (190,702) 1,745,885
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments 10,427 (110,229)
Total income $ 539,308 $ 2,180,351

Included in general and administrative expenses are investment management fees of $66,464 and
$58,452 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Assets Limited as to Use

The Board of Directors has designated these investments to fund the Foundation's deferred
compensation plan and severance plan and investments whose use has been restricted by donors to a
specific purpose. Assets limited as to use investments are stated at fair value and consist of the
following at June 30:

2012 2011
Mutual funds $ 3,977,879 $ 3,232,558
Cash and cash equivalents 853,213 1,122,253
Corporate bonds 887,609 1,019,546
Municipal bonds 85,490 85,519
U.S. treasury notes 164,141 167,834
Mortgage-backed securities - 100,635
Total assets limited as to use : $ 5,968,332 $ 5,728,345

12
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Fair Value Measurements

The Foundation adopted the methods of calculating fair value as described in Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 820-10 to value its financial assets and liabilities, where applicable. As defined in
ASC 820-10, fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In order to
increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, ASC 820-10 establishes a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into
three broad levels, which are described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date
for identical assets or liabilities. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1
inputs.

Level 2: Observable inputs that are based on inputs not quoted in active markets, but corroborated
by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available. The fair value
hierarchy gives the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. In determining fair value, the Foundation
utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs to the extent possible, as well as considers counterparty credit risk in its
assessment of fair value.

Financial assets carried at fair value as of June 30, 2012 are classified in the table below in one of the
three categories described above:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents © % 1,200,787 S - $ - $ 1,200,787
Debt instruments:

U.S. Treasury notes 702,871 - - 702,871

Mortgage-backed securities - 5,417,381 - 5,417,381

Corporate bonds - 6,257,328 - 6,257,328

Municipal bonds - 1,894,542 — 1,894,542

Total debt instruments 702,871 13,569,251 - 14,272,122

Mutual funds:

U.S. equity funds 3,977,879 - - 3,977,879

Interest in the P.O.
Pooled Investment Fund — - 17,198,453 17,198,453
Total assets at fair value $ 5,881,537 $13,569,251 $17,198,453 $36,649,241

Assets detailed above include:
Investments (note 3) $30,680,909
Assets limited as to use (note 4) 5,968,332
Total assets at fair value $36,649,241
13




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Financial assets carried at fair value as of June 30, 2011 are classified in the table below in one of the
three categories described above:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,305,135 § - $ - $ 1,305,135
Debt instruments:

U.S. Treasury notes 167,834 - - 167,834

Mortgage-backed securities 5,226,506 - 5,226,506

Corporate bonds - 6,223,888 - 6,223,888

Municipal bonds - 2,375,292 - 2,375,292

Total debt instruments 167,834 13,825,686 - 13,993,520
Mutual funds:

U.S. equity funds 3,232,558 - - 3,232,558
Interest in the P.O.

Pooled Investment Fund - - 17,389,155 17,389,155
Total assets at fair value $ 4,705,527 $13,825,686 $17,389,155 $35,920,368
Assets detailed above include:

Investments (note 3) $30,192,023

Assets limited as to use (note 4) 5,728,345
Total assets at fair value $35,920,368

The Foundation's investment interest in the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund is considered to be a Level 3
asset. The investment interest is considered as a Level 3 asset as legal interest is its pro rata portion of
the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund and not the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund's underlying assets. The
Foundation's interest is valued based upon its pro rata ownership of the total P.O. Pooled Investment
Fund. The Foundation had no commitment to make additional investments in the P.O. Pooled
Investment Fund at June 30, 2012 and 2011. Redemptions from the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund can
be made monthly but may be subject to a redemption notice period of up to 180 days. The P.O.
Pooled Investment Fund's assets consisted of the following for the years ended June 30:

2012 2011
Managed accounts 11% 13%
Mutual fund — equity, fixed income and
exchange traded funds, and common stock 54 53
Hedge funds 29 31
Cash and cash equivalents 6 3
Total 100% 100%
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The methods described above may produce a fair value that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Foundation believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result
in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

The following table is a rollforward of the statement of financial position amounts for financial
instruments classified by the Foundation in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy defined above as of
June 30, 2012 and 2011:

Fair value at July 1, 2011 $17,389,155
Change in value of the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund:
Interest income 108,224
Net realized gains 1.515
Net unrealized losses (300,441)
Fair value at June 30, 2012 $17,198,453
Fair value at July 1, 2010 $ 6,643,270
Change in value of the P.O. Pooled Investment Fund:
Interest income 130,580
Net realized gains 245,793
Net unrealized gains 1,369,512
Purchases of investments 9,000,000
Fair value at June 30, 2011 $17,389,155

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at June 30:

2012 2011
Office equipment $ 330,507 § 330,507
Leasehold improvements 166,774 156,209
Property — condominium 264,239 264,239
Total property and equipment 761,520 750,955
Less accumulated depreciation (515,479) (498,767
Property and equipment, net $ 246,041 § 252,188

Depreciation expense amounted to $16,712 and $16,272 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Notes Receivable

The Foundation has provided secured loans to employees. The loans bear interest at rates ranging

from interest free up to 4.89%. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the balances of loans outstanding are
$2,189,666 and $2,430,833, respectively, with a current portion of $781,166 in 2012 and $701,167 in
2011. Interest income amounted to $48,398 and $55,293 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Future amounts due at June 30, 2012 are $781,166 in 2013, $714,500 in 2014, $274,000
in 2015, $170,000 in 2016, $150,000 in 2017, $100,000 in 2018 and thereafter.

Pension Plans

The Foundation established the Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. Money Purchase
Pension Plan (the Plan), effective as of September 1, 1990. Effective September 1, 2008, the
Foundation amended and restated their pension plan to the Children's Orthopaedic Surgery
Foundation, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan. The first short year of the plan ended as of June 30, 2009. All
classes of employees are eligible to participate once they meet certain age and length-of-service
requirements. The Plan is invested with the Physicians' Organization Group Trust. The Foundation
must make an annual contribution to the Plan of 25% of eligible compensation, which amounted to
$1,190,625 and $1,118,042 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Foundation established the Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. 403(b) Plan (the
403(b) Plan), effective as of July 1, 1995. The 403(b) Plan allows eligible employees to elect to defer
a portion of their compensation, up to $17,000 and $16,500 per calendar year, for the years 2012 and
2011, respectively, for participants under age 50 and $22,500 and $22,000 per year for those age 50
and older. Employees become participants on the first day of the month following or coincident with
the performance of one hour of service. The president of the Foundation may not participate.
Contributions to the 403(b) Plan from salary reductions amounted to $374,000 and $341,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Foundation established the Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. 457(b) Plan (the
457(b) Plan), effective as of October 1, 2003. Employees become participants on the first day of the
month following or coincident with the performance of one hour of service. The plan requires funds
to be set astde in a trust, or otherwise, to fulfill the liability of the Foundation. All amounts remain
subject to claims of the Foundation's creditors. The maximum amount that may be contributed to the
plan on behalf of a participant for a calendar year may not exceed the Internal Revenue Service limits
of $17,000 and $16,500 for the years 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Foundation recorded
retirement plan expense amounting to $346,500 and $313,500 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. The assets of the Plan are reflected in the accompanying financial statements as
assets limited as to use. The Plan's cash and investment balances and the related obligation amounted
to $2,477,025 and $2,123,176 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

While the Foundation expects to continue the Plans indefinitely, it has reserved the right to modify,

amend or terminate the Plans. In the event of termination, the entire amount contributed under the
Plans must be applied to the payment of benefits to the participants or their beneficiaries.
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Severance Benefit Plan

The Foundation established a nonqualified severance benefit plan called the Children's Orthopaedic
Surgery Foundation, Inc. Severance Benefit Plan, effective as of September 1, 1991, to supplement the
severance, death or disability benefits available to certain employees of the Foundation. The Board of
Directors designates eligible employees and determines benefits.

The Severance Benefit Plan was frozen as of December 31, 2004. Although the assets of the trust
have been irrevocably set aside for payment of deferred compensation benefits, they are subject first to
the claims of the Foundation's creditors in the event the Foundation is subject to bankruptcy
proceedings.

The assets of the trust are reflected in the accompanying financial statements as assets limited as to
use. The Plan's cash and investment balances, and the related obligation, amount to $2,812,384 and
$2,810,921 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

After-Tax Plan

The Foundation established a nonqualified benefit plan called the Children's Orthopaedic Surgery
Foundation, Inc. After-Tax Plan, effective as of July 1, 1995, to accumulate funds for the payment of
educational and medical expenses for certain employees of the Foundation. The Board of Directors
designates eligible employees. Participants may request distributions for payment of tuition and other
educational expenses, medical school loans, IRC Code Section 529 plans, medical expenses or on
account of financial hardship. Contributions to the Plan are included as compensation and taxed to the
respective participant when made. Upon a participant's death or other termination from the
Foundation, all remaining benefits are paid directly to the respective participant or his/her designated
beneficiary.

Contributions are determined by the participants, and amounted to $3,056,000 and $3,523,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan

The Foundation amended and restated the Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc. Self-
Insured Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan (the Medical Expense Plan), effective January 1, 2003.
The Board of Directors designates eligible employees. Participants may receive reimbursement up to
$20,000 per calendar year for medical expenses for him or herself, his or her spouse and dependents
for care, diagnosis, prevention or treatment of a medical condition that is not reimbursed through other
means. The Foundation incurred expenses under this plan totaling $63,631 and $88,906 for the years
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payors and others for services rendered, as of June 30:

2012 2011
Gross patient service billings $ 41,545,852 $ 39,086,463
Less contractual allowances and provision for bad debts (14,559,147) (14,759,806)
Net patient service revenue $ 26,986,705 $ 24,326,657

The Foundation has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Foundation at
amounts different from its established rates. The allowance for contractual allowances and bad debts
is based upon these agreements and upon the Foundation's collection experience. The Foundation
grants credit without collateral to its patients, many of whom are local residents and are insured under
third-party payor agreements.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. The Foundation believes that it is in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential
wrongdoing. While no such regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as significant
regulatory action, including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Revenues from third-party payors, the uninsured and other revenues are summarized as follows for the
fiscal years ended June 30:

2012 2011

Blue Cross/Blue Shield $ 11,201,885 $ 9,482,270
Commercial/other managed care 13,072,304 10,718,767
Medicaid 989,949 2,694,930
Neighborhood health plan 1,054,059 1,065,483
Other governmental 280,907 131,687
Self-pay 645,288 464,647

27,244,392 24,557,784
Other 657,771 411,591
Revenues before provision for doubtful accounts 27,902,163 24,969,375
Provision for doubtful accounts (915,458) (642,718)
Net patient service revenue $ 26,986,705 $ 24,326,657
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Net Patient Service Revenue (continued)

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts in evaluating the collectibility
of accounts receivable. The Foundation analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of its
major payor sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and
provision for bad debts. Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of
revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. For receivables
associated with services provided to patients who have third-party coverage, the Foundation analyzes
contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and a provision for bad
debts, if necessary. For receivables associated with self-pay balances, the Foundation records a
provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that
many patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially
responsible. The difference between the standard rates and the amounts actually collected after all
reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance for doubtful
accounts.

Accounts receivable, net of allowances for contractual allowances and bad debt, from patients and
third-party payors were as follows as of June 30:

2012 2011
Blue Cross 28% 25%
Managed care 24 19
Commercial 22 22
Medicare and Medicaid 19 27
Other 7 7
Total 100% 100%

Functional Expenses

Total operating expenses of the Foundation, by function, are as follows for the years ended June 30:

2012 2011
Health care services $ 21,659,529 $ 21,215,356
Contributions — Children's Hospital 5,027,910 75,000
General and administrative 10,919,419 10,045,230
Total operating expenses $ 37,606,858 $ 31,335,586

Professional Liability

The Foundation and its physicians/subcontractors are insured against professional and general liability
insurance coverage by CRICO, a corporation formed and wholly owned by the Harvard-affiliated
medical institutions. The professional liability insurance policy is written on a claims-made basis.
The Foundation accrues a liability for claims incurred but not reported. The liability was $1,019,717
and $909,627 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Professional Liability (continued)

Professional liability insurance expenses, net of recoveries, are as follows:

2012 2011

Professional liability insurance premiums

net of recoveries $ 738,535 $ 669,454
Increase in reserve for incurred, but not reported

professional liability claims 110,090 166,166
Total operating expenses $ 848,625 § 835,620
Commitments
Operating Leases

The Foundation is obligated under noncancelable operating leases for office equipment. Equipment
rental expense amounted to $11,679 and $9,544 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The future minimum lease payments at June 30 are as follows:

2013 $10,743
2014 7,227
2015 6,032
2016 6,032
2017 4,524

Rent Expense

During the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Hospital charged the Foundation for clinic space
at the Hospital and satellite locations, under formal leases agreements. Rent expense amounted to
$702,852 and $623,582 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Contingencies — Complaints and Investigations

The Foundation is subject to complaints, claims and litigation which may arise in the normal course of
business. In addition, the Foundation is subject to investigations by various Federal and State
government agencies to assure compliance with applicable laws, some of which are subject to
different interpretations. Recently, governmental review of compliance by health care institutions,
including the Foundation, has increased. Complaints, claims and litigation or investigations could
occur directly or indirectly as a result of the Foundation's affiliation with Children's Hospital.
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BAKER|NEWMAN | NOYES

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Board of Directors
Children's Orthopaedic Surgery Foundation, Inc.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows and is not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

&(er '\Lﬂﬂ\ﬂn ‘%‘5

Boston, Massachusetts Limited Liability Company
December 19, 2012

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC
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CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.
Schedules of Program Expenses

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Salaries and wages

Retirement plan expense

Fringe benefits

Professional liability insurance

Grants, research and education
Professional education, dues and publications
Payroll taxes :
Outside medical services

Parking and auto expense

Donations

Orthopedic resource center

Medical supplies

Total program expenses
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2012 . 2011
$15,348,433  $14,801,897
1,861,125 1,753,542
987,082 837,349
848,625 835,620
709,439 1,092,392
460,912 526,160
425,002 394,348
409,391 388,822
339,750 324,350
140,970 131,660
98,486 98,298
30,314 30,918
$21,659,529  $21,215,356




CHILDREN'S ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedules of General and Administrative Expenses

Clinical and clerical expenses
Billing and collections

Rent expense

Office expenses and supplies
Physicians' organization dues
Consultants

Telephone

Investment management fees
Legal and accounting

Bank and payroll service fees
Depreciation

Equipment rental
Miscellaneous

Benefit plan administration fees
Shared clinic costs, net

Total general and administrative expenses

June 30, 2012 and 2011
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2012 2011

$ 8,095,382 $ 7,628,802
1,409,590 1,229,054
702,852 623,582
399,942 356,601
285,122 189,148
98,186 52,543
90,046 89,274
66,464 58,452
59,485 60,419
31,924 25,583
16,712 16,272
11,679 9,544
3,913 6,044

3,000 4,825
(354,878) (304,913)
$10,919.419 $10,045,230




